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3102 Shawnee Drive
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‘ UNITED ST L&TES
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390 Industrial Park Blvd.
Moorefield, WV 26836

EPA Facility 1.D. ¥ WVD981738909,
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FACILITY.

Docket No. RCRA-03-2010-0069

Proceeding Under Section
3008(a) and (g) of the
‘Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, as amended,

2 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and (g}

CONSENT AGREEMENT

I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
P AR AT

This Consent Agreement is entered into by th

e Director of the Land and Chemicals

Division, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region III (“Complainant™), and
American Woodmark Corporation(“Respondént” or "AWC("), pursuant to Section

3008(a) and (g) of the Solid Waste Disposal

¢t, commonly known as Resource

Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended by inter alia, the Hazardous and
Solid Waste Amendments of 1984 (collectively referred to hereinafter as “RCRA™), 42
U.S.C. §6928(a) and (g), and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the

Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties

and the Revocation/ Termination or

Suspension of Permits ("Consolidated Rules of Pracrice"), 40 C.F.R. Part 22| including,
specifically, 40 C.FR. 8§ 22.13(b) and 22.]8Tb)(2) and (3).

The Consolidated Rules of Practice, at 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b), provide. in pertinent part,

that where the parties agree to settlement of o
of a complaint, a proceeding simultaneously t

¢ or more causes of action before the filing
nay be commenced and concluded by the

issuance of a consent agreement and final or(:ll:r pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b)?2) and

(3). Pursuant thereto, this Consent Agreeme

t ("CA”) and the accompanying Final Order

(“FO™, collectively referred to herein as the “CAFO”) simultaneously commences and

concludes this administrative proceeding agai

1

nst Respondent.
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The State of West Virginia (“West Virginia” |or “State™) has received federal
authorization to administer a Hazardous Waste Management Program in lieu of the
federal hazardous waste management program established under RCRA Subuitle C, 42
U.S.C. §§ 6921-6939%¢. The West Virginia Hazardous Waste Management Regulations

{(hereinafter, “WVHWMR”), promulgated by

the State pursuant to West Virginia Code

Chapter 22, Article 18 (Hazardous Waste Meulnagement Act), originally were authorized

by EPA on March 28, 1984, etfective May 2¢
Section 3006(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926
authorized by EPA on May 10, 2000, effectiv

, 1986 (51 Fed. Reg. 17739), pursuant to
b). Revisions to the WVHWMR were
e July 10, 2000 (65 Fed. Reg. 29973) and

October 16, 2003, effective December 15, 2003 (68 Fed. Reg. 59542). The provisions of

West Virginia’s current, authorized revised

'VHWMR are set forth in Title 33, Leg.

Rule. Division of Environmental Protection, bfﬂce of Waste Management, Series 20.
Parts 33-20-1 through 33-20-15 (33 Code of $tate Regulations 20, abbreviated as

33CSR20, and hereinafter cited as WVHWM

§ 33-21-1, et seq.). West Virginia

Treatment, Storage, or Disposal Facilities” (hereinafter, “HAPTSDR”), which were

regulations entitled “To Prevent and Control Fir Pollution From Hazardous Waste

promulgated by the State pursuant to West Virginia Code Chapter 22, Article 5 (Air

Pollution Control), and became effective in

est Virginia on June 1, 1999, originally

were authorized by EPA on May 10. 2000, e ‘ective July 10. 2000 (65 Fed. Reg. 29973).

Revisions to the HAPTSDR were authorized

by EPA on October 16. 2003, effective

December 15, 2003 (68 Fed. Reg. 59542). The provisions of West Virginia's current,

authorized revised HAPTSDR are set forth in
Environmental Protection, Office of Air Qual

8 (45 Code of State Regulations 25, abbreviat

Title 45, Leg. Rule, Division of
Ey, Series 25, Parts 45-25-1 through 45-25-
d as 45CSR25, and hereinafter cited as

HAPTSDR § 45-25-1, et seq.). The provisions of the WVHWMR incorporate by
reference the federal hazardous waste management regulations published in the Federal

Register through March 8. 2000 (See, 68 Fed.

Reg. 59543, October 16, 2003), except as

specifically excepted from incorporation by reference therein. The provisions of the
HAPTSDR incorporate by reference the fedeﬁal hazardous waste management regulations

that are identified in 45CSR25 Table 25-A.
HAPTSDR have become requirements of RC

he provisions of the WVHWMR and of the
RA Subtitle C and are enforceable by EPA

pursuant to RCRA § 3008(a), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a).

The factual allegaﬁons and legal conclusions

in this CA that are based on federally-

|
authorized West Virginia Hazardous Waste M‘anagement Program requirements cite to
WVHWMR and HAPTSDR provisions in effect at the time of the violations alleged
herein. Except as otherwise provided, all refetences and citations herein to the federal

hazardous waste management regulations set

forth at 40 C.F.R. Parts 260 - 279 are to the

July 1. 1999 edition of the Code of Federal Rélgulations.

i




American Woodmuark Corporation Consent Agreement
EPA Facility 1.D. 8WVD981738909 Docket ¥o, RCRA-03-2010-0069

5.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

Section 3008(g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928{g), authorizes the assessment of a civil
penalty against any person who violates any requirement of Subtitle C of RCRA.
Respondent is hereby notified of EPA’s determination that Respondent has violated
RCRA Subtitle C, 42 U.8.C. §§ 6921-693 9e,$and federally-authorized WVHWMR and
HAPTSDR requirements at its tacility locate i at 390 industrial Park Blvd., Moorefield,
West Virginia 26836 (hereinafier, the “Facility™).

In accordance with Section 3008(a)}2) of RCBA, 42 1).8.C. § 6928(a)(2), and by written
letter dated June 10, 2009, EPA notified the State, through the Hazardous Waste and UST
Program Manager of the WVDEP, of EPA"sjmenl to commence this administrative
action against Respondent in response to the violations of RCRA Subtitle C that are
alleged herein.

| Il. GENERAL PR‘bVISIONS
|

Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set forth in this CAFOQ.

|
Respondent neither admits nor denies the spe¢ific factual allegations or the conclusions of
law contained in this CAFO, except as provided in the paragraph immediately above.
Respondent agrees not to contest EPA’s jurisdiction with respect to the execution of this
CA, the issuance of the attached FO, or the enforcement of the CAFO.

For the purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent hereby expressly waives its right to
contest the allegations set forth in this CA and any right to appeal the accompanying FO.

Respondent consents to the issuance of this CAFO and agrees to comply with its terms
and conditions.

Respondent shall bear its own costs and attorn|ey’s fees.
The provisions of this CAFO shall be binding|upon Complainant and upon Respondent,
its officers, directors, employees, successors and assigns.

|
This CAFOQ shall not relieve Respondent of itg obligation to comply with all applicable
provisions of federal, state or local law, nor shall it be construed to be a ruling on, or
determination of, any issue related to any federal, state or local permit; nor does this
CAFO constitute a waiver, suspension or modification of the requirements of RCRA
Subtitle C, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-6939¢, or any regulations promulgated and/or authorized
thereunder. |
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1. EPA FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

In accordance with the Consoliduted Rules of|Practice at 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and
22.18(b)(2) and (3), Complainant makes the fpllowing findings of fact and conclusions of

law:

Respondent is a Virginia corporation that is headquartered at 3102 Shawnee Drive,

Winchester, VA 22601-4208 and is registered
Virginia. :

At the Facility, Respondent manufactures woc
vanities.

to do business in the State of West

den kitchen cabinets and wooden bathroom

Respondent is a “'person” as that term is defined in WVHWMR § 33-20-2.1.a. which

incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 260.10.

The Facility 1s a hazardous waste storage “faci
§ 33-20-2.1.a, which incorporates by reference

At all times relevant to this CAFO, Responden

lity” as that term is defined in WVHWMR
40 C.F.R. §260.10.

t has been the “owner™ and “operator” of

the Facility, as those terms are defined in WVHWMR § 33-20-2.1.a, which incorporates

by reference 40 C.F.R. § 260.10.

As described below, Respondent 1s and, at all t
“generator” of “‘solid waste” and “hazardous v
defined in WVHWMR § 33-20-2.1.a, which in
§ 260.10.

imes relevant to this CAFO has been, a
vaste™ at the Facility, as these terms are
corporates by reference 40 C.F.R.

At all times relevant to this CAFO, and as desgjribed below, Respondent has engaged in
the “storage” of “solid waste” and “hazardous waste™ in a “‘tank” at the Facility, as these

terms are defined in WYHWMR § 33-20-2.1.a
CF.R. §260.10.

which incorporates by reference 40

At all times relevant to this CAFO. Respondeni has been a large quantity generator of

hazardous waste at the Facility.

On May 20, 2008, a duly authorized representa
Evaluation Inspection (“CEI™) of the Facility to
federally authorized WVHWMR requirements.

tive of EPA conducted a Compliance
assess the Respondent’s compliance with
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29.

30.

31.

On July 25, 2008, pursuant to the authority of
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RCRA § 3007(a), 42 U.S.C. § 6927(a),

EPA sent an information request letter (“IRLT) to Facility representatives seeking

additional information regarding certain of Re
practices at the Facility and requesting the pro
information.

spondent’s hazardous waste management
duction of spectfied documents and

A Facility represe:ntative replied to EPA’s IRL by correspondence dated October 3, 2008.

On October 13, 2009, EPA sent a Notice of Noncompliance and Request to Show Cause
letter ("NON”) 1o the Facility advising Respondent of EPA’s preliminary findings of

federally authorized WVHWMR violations at

the Pacility and offering the Respondent an

opportunity to provide such additional information as it believed the Agency should

review and consider before reaching any final
compliance at the Facility.

In a meeting held on November 10, 2009, repy

conclusions pertaining to the Respondent’s

esentatives of the Respondent responded to

the preliminary conclusions set forth by EPA in the NON (hereinafter, the "1RL
Response”) and provided EPA with supplemental information. '

On the basis of the May 20, 2008 CEL IRL R
previded by Respondent to EPA in response t

sponse and supplemental information
the NON, EPA concludes that Respondent

has violated certain requirements and pravisions of RCRA Subtitle C. 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-
6939, and WVHWMR and HAPTSDR requijements promulgated thereunder.

Relevant Statutory Requirements

Pursuant to Scctioﬁ 3005¢a) and (e) of RCRA 42 U.5.(. § 6925(a) and (e), and
WVHWMR § 33-20-11.1, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 270.1(b), no
perscn may own or operate a facility for the trcatment, storage or disposal of hazardous

waste without first obtaining a permit or interi
|

Respondent has never been issued a permit pu

m status for such facility.

rsuant to Section 3005(a) of RCRA, 42

U.S.C. § 6925(a), or WVHWMR § 33-20-11.1! which incorporates by reference 40
C.F.R. Part 270, for the storage of hazardous waste at the Facility, and did not. at any

time, have interim status pursuant to Section 3
WVHWMR § 33-20-11.1, which incorporates

005(e) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(¢e). or
by reference 40 C.I.R. § 270.70.
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General Permit Exemption Conditions

WVHWMR § 33-20-5.1 incorporates by reference the requirements of 40 C.FR. §

262.34(a), which provides that generators of hazardous waste who accumulate hazardous

wasle In containers, tanks, drip pads. or conta
days are exempt from the requirement to obta
as the hazardous waste is stored in accordance

inment buildings on-site for less than 90
in a permit for such accumulation. so long
= with a number of conditions set forth in

that section, including, infer alia, the condition set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(ii),
which requires, in pertinent part and with exceptions not herein applicable, that when

hazardous waste is placed in tanks, the gener
requirements of 40 CF.R., Part 265, Subparts
|

Permit Exemption Conditions - Tank Systems

tor must comply with the applicable
J, BB and CC, : |

1

|
40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart J [entitled *“Tank
follows: |

a. 40 C.F.R. § 265.190(a) provides, with

Systems™} provides, in pertinent part, as

exceptions not herein applicable, that the

requirements of 40 C.I'.R. Part 265, Subpart J, “apply to owners and operators of

facilities that use tank systems for storing or treating hazardous waste. . . .”

b. 40 C.F.R. § 265.192(a) provides. in pertinent part, that owners or operators of new
tank systems or components must obtajn a written assessment reviewed and

certified by a qualified Professional E
270.11{d), attesting that the system’s

gineer in accordance with 40 C.F.R. §
‘h)undation, structural support, seams,

connections and pressure controls (if applicable) are adequately designed and that
the tank system has sufticient structural strength, compatibility with the waste(s)
to be stored or treated, and corrosion protection so that it will not collapse,
rupture, or faill,]” and that such assessment must include the information set forth

|

in 40 C.F.R. § 265.192(a)(1) through (T). S

Permit Exemption Conditions - Air Emission Standards for Equipment Leaks

40 C.F.R. Part 265!, Subpart BB [entitled “Air Emission Standards (or Equiﬁment Leaks™]

provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

a. 40 C.FR. § 265.1050(a) provides, with
applicable, that the regulations in 40 C.

exceptions and exclusions not herein
F.R. Part 265, Subpart BB, apply to

owners and operators of facilities that treat, store, or disposc of hazardous wastes.
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b. 40 C.F.R. § 265.1050(b) provides, in relevant part and with exceptions and
exclusions not herein applicable, that[40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart BB, “applies to
equipment that contains or contacts hazardous wastes with organic concentrations
of at least 10 percent by weight that a're managed in one of the following: “(1) A
unit that is subject to the permitting requirements of 40 CFR part 270, 0r ... (3) A
unit that is exempt from permitting under the provisions of 40 CFR 262.34(a)
(i.e., a “90-day” tank or container) and is not a recycling unit under the provisions
of 40 CFR 261.6.” ‘

| ;

C. 40 C.F.R. § 265.1050(c) provides that: “[e]ach piece of equipment to which this
subpart applies shall be marked in such a manner that it can be distinguished
readily from other pieces of equipment.” '

! :
35. 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart BB, provides, in pertinent part and with respect to
“Definitions”, as follows: ‘
a. 40 C.F.R. § 265.1051 provides, in relgvant part, that: “[a]s used in this [40 C.F.R.
Part 265] subpart [BBI, all terms shall have the meaning given them in [40
C.F.R.] § 264.1031 .. .7, which section therein defines the term:
1. equipment to mean and include “each valve, pump . . . [and ] pressure
release device . . ..” !

il. in gas/vapor service to mean “that the piece of equipment contains or
contacts a hazardous waste str¢am that is in the gaseous state at operating
conditions.” '

1l in light liquid service to mean |‘that the piece of equipment contains or

contacts a waste stream where the vapor pressure of one or more of the
organic components in the stream is greater than 0.3 kilopascals (kPa) at
20°C, the total concentration of the pure organic components having a
vapor pressure greater than 0.3|Kilopascals (kPa) at 20°C is equal to or
greater than 20 percent by weight, and the fluid is a liquid at operating
conditions.” ‘
| .
36. 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart BB, also provides. in pertinent part and with respect to
“Standards: Pumps in light liquid service”, as ffollows: ‘ :

a. 40 C.F.R. § 265.1052(a)(1) provides, W\fith exceptions and exclusions (including
those of 40 C.F.R. § 265.1050(d), (e) and (f} pertaining to equipment in vacuum
service, equipment that contains or contacts hazardous waste with an organic

2
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concentration of 10 percent by weight
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for less than 300 hours per calendar year

and pharmaceutical manufacturing facilities) not herein applicable, that “[e]ach
pump in light liquid service shall be rr‘tonitored monthly to detect Ie:aks by the

methods specified in [40 C.F.R.] § 265.1063(b) ... ."

1

b. 40 C.F.R. § 265.1052(a)(2) provides that “[e]ach pump in light liquid service shall

be checked by visual inspection each ¢
dripping from the pump seal.”
i

40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart BB, also provides
not herein applicable, with respect to “Standai
service”, as follows:

alendar week for indications of liquids
-
o
. in pertinent part and with an exemption
ds: Pressure relief devices in gas/vapor

a. 40 C.F.R. § 265.1054(b)}2) provides t\}llat “[n]o later than 5 calendarl days after [a]

pressure release, the pressure relief de
condition of no detectable emissions, a

ice shall be monitored to confirm the
s indicated by an instrument reading of less

than 500 parts per million ppm above background. as measured by the method

specified in § 265.1063(c).”

40 C.F R. Part 265, Subpart BB, provides, in
“Standards: Valves in gas/vapor service or in |

a. 40 CF.R. § 265.1057(a) provides, in ¢
applicable. that “[elach valve in . . . lig

|
ertinent part and with respect to
ight liquid service”, as follows:

levant part, with exceptions not herein
ht iquid service shall be monitored

monthly to detect leaks by the methods specified in [40 C.F.R.]

§ 265.1063(b). . . .7

40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart BB. provides, in pertinent part and with respect;to

“Recordkeeping requirements”, as follows:
|

a. 40 C.F.R.§265.1064(b)(1) provides th

I
|
|
|

at owners and operators must record in the

facility operating record, for each piece| of equipment to which 40 C.F.R. Part 265,
Subpart BB applies, the following infogmation: “(I}) Equipment identification

number and hazardous waste managem
locations within the facility (e.g., identi

ent unit identification. (ii) Approximate
ty the hazardous waste management unit

on a facility plot plan). (iii) Type of equipment {(¢.g., a pump or pipeline valve).

(iv) Percent-by-weight total organics in

the hazardous waste stream at the

equipment. (v) Hazardous waste state at the equipment (e.g., gas/vapor or liquid).
(vi) Method of compliance with the sta:Fdard (¢.g., “monthly leak detection and

repair” or “equipped with dual mechanical seals™).”

| :
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(i11) The maximum instrument reading
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40 C.F.R. § 265.1064(g) provides that the following information pertaining to all

equipment subject to the requirements
265.1060 shall be recorded in a log tha

in 40 C.F.R. §§ 265.1052 through
tis kept in the facility operating record:

“(1) A list of identification numbers for equipment (except welded fittings)

subject to the requirements of this sub

art. (2)(I) A list of identification numbers

for equipment that the owner or operator elects to designate for no detectable
emissions, as indicated by an instrumeint reading of less than 500 ppm above
background, under the provisions of §§ 265.1052(e), 265.1053(1), and
265.1057(f). (ii) The designation of this equipment as subject to the requirements

of §§ 265.1052(e), 265.1053(1), or 265

1057(f) shall be signed by the owner or

operator. (3) A list of equipment identification numbers for pressure relief

devices required to comply with § 265
compliance test required in §3§ 265.105
265.1057(f). (ii) The background leve

1054(a). (4)(I) The dates of each
2(e), 265.1053(T). 265.1054. and
measured during each compliance test.
measured at the equipment during each

comphiance test. (5) A list of identificgtion numbers for equipment in vacuum
service. (6) ldentification, either by list or location (area or group) of equipment
that contains or contacts hazardous waste with an organic concentration of at least

10 percent by weight for less than 300 hours per calendar year.

Permit Exemption Conditions - Air Emission Standards

for Tanks, Surface Impoundments, and Containers

40. 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart CC [entitled “Air Emission Standards for Tanks. Susface
Impoundments, and Containers™], provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

d.

40 C.F.R. § 265.1080(a) provides, with|exceptions not herein applicable, that the
requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart CC, “apply to owners and operators
of all facilities that treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste in tanks, surface
impoundments, or containers subject to| either subpart I, J, or K of this {40 C.F.R]
part {265]. ... |

40 C.F.R. § 265.1083(b) provides, in relevant part and with exceptions not herein
applicable, that “{t]he owner or operator shall control air pollution emnissions from
cach hazardous waste management unit|in accordance with the standards specified
in [40 C.F.R.] §§ 265.1085 through 265.1088 . . . as applicable to the management
of the hazardous waste management unit, except as provided in [40 C.F.R. §
265.1083(c)]. . .. :

40CF.R. § ‘265. 1085(b)(1) provides, in relevant part, that for a tank Which meets
all of the conditions specified in 40 C.FIR. § 265.1085(b)(1)(I) through (111), “the

9
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owner or operator shall control air pollution emissions from the tank in

3 |
1
|
1
!

d. 40 C.F.R.§ 265.1085(c)(4) provides,

accordance with the Tank Level 1 controls specified in [40 C.F.R. § 265.1085(c)].
i . i
! |

n relevant part, that: “[t]he owner or

operator shall inspect the air emissioncontrol equipment in accordance with the
following requirements: (I) The fixed roof and its closure devices shall be visually
inspected by the owner or operator to check for defects that could result in air

pollutant emissions. . . . (ii) The owner

or operator shall perform an initial

inspection of the fixed roof and its closure devices on or before the date that the

tank becomes subject to this section.

hereafter, the owner or operator shall

perform the inspections at least once eyery year... (iii} In the event that a defect is
detected, the owner or operator shall repair the defect . . . (iv) The owner or
operator shall maintain a record of the inspections in accordance with the

requirements specified in § 265.1090(b
|

of a tank using air emission controis i

) of this subpart.” - i
1 1

accordance with the requirements of [40

e. 40 C.F.R. § 265.1090(b) provides, in T‘Tlevam part, that: “[t]he ownér or operator

C.F.R.|§ 265.1085 of this [Part 265] su

bpart [CC] shall prepare and maintain

records for the tank™, which information includes. but is not limited to: “(1i) A

record for each inspection required by |

COUNTI

Operating Without\a Permit ‘ §

The allegations of paragraphs | through 40 of 1
reference as though fully set forth at length.

At the time of the May 20, 2008 CET and at tin}l

Respondent stored and managed paint overspra

40 C.F.R.] § 265.1085 of this subpart, . . ."

his CA are incorporated herein by
|
!

es prior and subsequent thereto,
y sludge and spent thinner waste with the

associated EPA Hazardous Waste Codes DOOLL D035, F003 and F005, and with organic

concentrations of at least 10 percent by weightl
WVHWMR § 33-20-2.1.a, which incorporates
at the less than minety day hazardous waste stoy
i
The hazardous waste storage tank referenced i
“Tank”) was installed at the Facility in June 20
F003 and F005 hazardous waste at all times hes
i
Installation of the Tank at the Facility commen

in a “tank”, as that term is defined at
by reference 40 C.F.R. § 260.10., located
age ared of the Facility, ‘

H’ the preceding paragraph (hefeinafter,

03 and was used to store D001, D035,
'ein relevant. : |

ed after July 14, 1986 such that the Tank

and its ancillary equipment, at all times herein relevant, met the definition of a “new tank

10
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| !

46.

47.

48.

49.

| !
system” pursuant to WVHWMR § 33-20-2.1 4. which incorporates by refefe.nce the
definitions and the meanings of terms which Ere ascribed to them in 40 C.F.R. § 260.10.
! i i
At no time was the Tank a recycling unit under the provisions of WVHWI\/‘IR § 33-20-
3.1, which incorporates by reference the provisions of 40 C.F.R. § 261 .6, but at all times
relevant to the violations alleged herein. such Tank was a “hazardous waste management
unit” pursuant to WYHWMR § 33-20-2.1.a, which incorporates by reference the
definitions and the meanings of terms which are ascribed to them in 40 C.F.R. § 260.10.
‘ ‘

|
\ | ‘}

At the time of the May 20, 2008 CEI and at alll times herein relevant, the Tank was used
to store hazardous waste at the Facility and, pursuant to WVHWMR § 33-20-5.1, which
incorporates by reference the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(ii) and, by further
reference, the reqdirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart J, was subject to the “new tank
system” written assessment requirement of 40|C.F.R. § 265.192(a), which is identitied
and set forth in Pa:ragraph 33, above. |1

‘ ; |
At no time did the Respondent ever obtain for|the Tank the written assessment required
pursuant to WVHWMR § 33-20-5.1, which incorporates by reference the requirements of
40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(i1) and. by further reference, the requirements of 40 C.IF.R.
§265.192(a). | : L
At all times herein relevant. a pump and two valves associated with the Tank were “in
light liquid service” and a pressure relief device associated with the Tank was “in
gas/ivapor service”. At all times relevant to the violations alleged herein, such pump,
valves and pressure relief device were equipment which routinely contained and/or came
into contact with hazardous wastes having organic concentrations of at least 10 percent by
weight for periods in excess of 300 hours per calendar year. : |

| - |
Pursuant to WVHWMR § 33-20-5.1, which in¢orporates by reference the requirements of
40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(ii) and, by further reference, the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Pan
265. Subpart BB, the equipment referenced in the preceding paragraph were subject to

applicable marking, monitoring and recordkceg[ng requirements set forth at 40 C.F.R.

§§ 265.1050(c), 265.1052(a)(1) and (2}, 265.1054(b}2); 265.1057(a), and 265.1064(b){(1}
and (g), which are identified and set forth in Paragraphs 34, 36, 37. 38 and 3?, above.

At the time of the May 20, 2008 CEI, neither tl’L pump, the two valves nor tHe pressure
relief device associated with the Tank was marked in any way to distinguish such pieces
of equipment readily from other pieces of equipment, as required pursuant to WVHWMR
§ 33-20-5.1, which incorporates by reference the requirements of 40 C.F.R. §
262.34(a)(1)(ii} andf by further reference, the rejquirements of 40 C.F.R. § 265.1050(c).

| !

| L
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52.

53.

54.

56.

51,

At no time during the period from January 2005 through July 2009 did the Respondent
perform monthly monitoring to detect leaks, or weekly visual inspections for indications
of liquids dripping from the seal, of the pump associated with the Tank, as required
pursuant to WYHWMR § 33-20-5.1, which incorporates by reference the requirements of
40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(i1) and, by further reference, the requrrements of 40 C.FR.

§§ 265. 1052(a)(1) and (2). |

The Tank was not equipped with a closed-vent system capable of capturiné and

transporting leakage from the pressure release device to a control device as described in

40 C.F.R. § 265.1060 and pressure releases from the Tank have Occurred subsequent to

its installation at the Facility and at times herein relevant. ;
| ‘

. ‘ \

During the period from January 2005 through July 2009, Respondent failed to monitor

the pressure relief device on the Tank, by the method specified in 40 C.F.R. §

265.1063(c¢), within 5 calendar days after eaclI pressure release which occurred during

that time period in order to confirm the condition of no detectable emissions, as required

pursuant to WVHWMR § 33-20-5.1, which irtcorporates by reference the requirements of

40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(i1) and, by further reference, the requirements of 40 C.F.R.

§ 265.1054(b)(2).,

|
| ;
At no time during the period from January 2005 through July 2009 did the Respondent
perform monthly monitoring, by any of the mgthods specified in 40 C.F.R. § 265.1063(b).
of either of the two Tank valves in order to degect leaks from those valves. as required
pursuant to WVHWMR § 33-20-5.1, which irlcorporates by refcrence the requirements of
40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(ii) and, by further rek‘crenoe, the requirements of 40 C.F.R.
§265.1057(a). | o
At the time of the May 20, 2008 CEl, the Facility's operating record did not contain or
include, in a log or otherwise, any of the 1nf01mat10n identified in Paragraph 39, above,
for the pump, two valves and pressure relief device associated with the Tank, as required
pursuant to WYHWMR § 33-20-5.1, which 1rtE:0rp0rates by reference the requirements of
40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(30) and, by further reterence, the rcqu1rements of 40 C.F.R.
§ 265.1064(b)(1) and (g). ‘ |
i ‘ 1
At all times herein relevant, the Tank at the F cility was a hazardous waste management
unit that contained hazardous waste with an average volatile organic concentration greater
than 500 ppm by weight that was not reduced|by any organic destruction or removal
process, did not otherwise qualify for any 40 C.F.R. § 265.1083(c) exemption and,
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 265.1083(b). was subject to the air pollution control requirements
of 40 C.F.R. § 265.1085 and the associated recordkeeping requirements of 40 C.F.R.

§ 265.1090(b) pursuant to WVHWMR § 33-20-5.1, which incorporates by reference the
| -

| 12
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|

requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(i1) and, by further reference, the r:equirements of
40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart CC, I

| :

, Ny . ‘ A
At all times herein relevant, the Tank at the Facility was equipped with a fixed roof and at
least three access ports (hereinafter referred tq as “closure devices™), located on the top of
the Tank, and the Tank was subject to, and nop otherwise excepted from, Tank Level 1 air

Consent Agreement
Docket No. RCRA-03-2010-0069
. 1

57.

58.

59.

60.

6l.

emission controls, pursuant to WYHWMR § 33

the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 262,34(a)(1X
requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart (]
40 C.F.R. §§ 265.1083(b), 265.1085¢(b)(1) and
requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 265.1090(b), as i
above, ,

1
At the time of the May 20, 2008 CEI, the Resy
initial and annual Tank fixed roof and closure
required pursuant to WVHWMR § 33-20-5.1

3-20-5.1, which incorporates by reference
1) and, by further reference, the

C, including the requirements set forth at
{c)4), and the associated recordkeeping
lentified and set forth in Paragraph 40,

| |
| |
ondent did not maintain records of the

device emission control visual inspections

. which incorporates by reference the

requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(i1) and, by further reference, the re%cordkeeping

requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 265.1090(b)(1)(i1).

|
For each of the reasons and during each of the
51, 53, 54, 55 and 58, above, Respondent faile
conditions. identified in paragraph 32 above, fi

: |

time periods set forth in paragraphs 47, 50,
d to comply with the permit exemption

or the temporary (f.e., 90 days or less)

accumulation of hazardous waste by a generator at the Facility, as required pursuant to

WVYHWMR § 33-20-5.1 and therefore failed 1

permiiting/interim status requirements provided by such section. ; |

i
During each of the times and time periods set |
and 58, above, the Respondent operated the Ta

interim status or valid exemption to the permitti

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-11.1
C.F.R. § 270.1{b), and Section 3005(a) of RCR
operating a hazardous waste storage facility wi
exemption to the permitting/interim status requ

|
|
|

13

qualify for an exemption from the

|
rth in Paragraphs 47, 50, 51; 53, 54, 55
k and the Facility without a permit,
ing/interim status requirements.

. |

|

which incorporates hy reference 40
A, 42 U.8.C. § 6925(a), by owning and
hout a permit, intertm status or valid
irements. |

|
|
!
!
!
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62.

63.

64.

66.

67.

68.

69.

COUNT I
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|

Failure to Comply with WVHWMR

The allegations of paragraphs | through 61 of
reference as though fully set forth at length.

Manifest Recordkeeping Reqm[rement Sor Generators

this CA are incorporated herein by

| :
WVHWMR § 33-20-5.1 incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 262.23(a), which provides
that “[t]he generator must: (1) Sign the manifjst certification by hand; and (2) Obtain the

handwritten signature of the initial transporte
and (3) Retain one copy, in accordance with |

WVHWMR § 33~20-5.1 incorporates by refer,

Lfand date of acceptance on the manifest;

0 C.F.R.] § 262.40(a).”

nce the recordkeeping requirements of 40

C.F.R. § 262.40(a), which provide that: “[a) generator must keep a copy of each manifest

signed in accordance with [40 C.F.R.] § 262.2

3(a) for three years or until he receives a

signed copy from the designated facility which received the waste. This signed copy

must be retained as a record for at least three y
by the initial transporter.”

ears from the date the waste was accepted

On January 31, 2006 and April 11, 2006 Respondent shipped from the Facility hazardous

waste generated by the Respondent at the Faci
24292 and 22339, respectively.

lity under Hazardous Waste Manifest Nos.

Respondent obtained hand-signed copies of H
22339 from the initial transporters of such haz

1zardous Waste Manifest Nos. 24292 and
ardous waste when such waste was

accepted by those initial transporters on JanuaTy 31, 2006 and April 11, 2006.

respectively.,

Respondent subsequently received from the designated facilities that received the
hazardous waste referenced above, signed copies of Hazardous Waste Manifest Nos.
24292 and 22339 from those designated facilities (hereinafter “fully signed copies of

Hazardous Waste Manifest Nos. 24292 and 22

339”).

At the time of the May 20, 2008 CEI, Respondent did not maintain at the Facility fully

signed copies of Hazardous Waste Manifest N

ns. 24292 and 22339 that Respondent

previously received from the designated facilities that received the associated hazardous

waste.

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-5.1,

which incorporates by reference the

generator manifest recordkeeping requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 262.40(a), by failing to

retain at the Facility fully signed copies of HazTrdous Waste Manifest Nos. 24292 and

14
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70.

71,

72.

73.

74.

22339 as records for at least three years from

by the initial transporter.

.
| COUNTIII |

i
Consent Agreement
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: |
the date the associated waste was accepted

' Failure to Comply with WWHWMR

New Tank System Assessment Requirements ‘ !

! ‘ .
The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 69 of| this CA are incorporated herein by

reference as though fully set forth at length.

| '
! |
i

WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.192(a).

provides, in relevant part, and with exception

not herein applicable, that “[o]wners or

operators of new tank systems or components|must obtain, . . a written assessment
reviewed and certified by a qualified Professional Engineer, in accordance with {40
C.F.R.]§270.11(d) . . . attesting that the tank system has sufficient structural integrity
and is acceptable for the storing and treating of hazardous waste. The assessment must
show that the foundation, structural support, seams. connecttons, and pressure controls (it
applicable) are adequately designed and that the tank system has sufficient structural
strength, compatibility with the waste(s) to be|stored or treated. and corrosion protection

to ensure that it will not collapse, rupture, or fail.” ‘ i

At the time of the May 20. 2008 CEI, Respondent had not obtained a written structural
integrity assessment that had been reviewed and certified by a qualified Professional
Engineer in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 270.11(d), or that included the relevant and
applicable information required pursuant to 40/C.F.R. § 264.192(a), for the Tank and its
associated ancillary equipment at the Facility. |

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, iwhich incorporates by reference the
requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264.192(a), by failing to obtain a written assessment,
reviewed or certified by a qualified Professional Engineer in accordance with 40 C.F.R.
§ 270.11(d), attesting that the Tank and its assdciated ancillary equipment at'the Facility
had sufficient structura] integrity and was acceptable for the storing and treating of

hazardous waste.

i COUNT IV
Failure to Comply with HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5 ‘:
Air Emission Standards (for Equipment Leaks)

Marking Requirements

The ailegations of ﬁaragraphs 1 through 73 of't

reference as though fully set forth at length.

-

15
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75.

76.

77.

78.

| i
| i 1
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HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5, incorporates by reference the “Applicability” requirements of 40
C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart BB [entitled ©* Air Emission Standards for Equipment Leaks™],
which requirements are set forth at 40 C.F.R.|§ 264.1050, which include the following
provisions: I ! 1‘

40 C.F.R. § 264.1050(a) provides, wit
applicable, that the regulations in 40 (
owners and operators of facilities that

40 C.F.R. § 264.1050(b) provides, in 1
exclusions not herein applicable, that 4
equipment that contains or contacts ha

unit that is subject to the permitting re

h exceptions and exclusions not herein
F.R. Part 264, Subpart BB, apply to

treat, store, or dispose of hazardous wastes.
d |

elevant part and with exceptions and

10 C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart BB, “applies to
zardous wastes with organic concentrations

uirements of 40 CFR part 270, 0r. .. (3) A

of at least 10 percent by weight that arF managed in one of the following: “(1) A

unit that is exempt from permitting under the provisions of 40 CFR 262 .34(a)
{i.e., a “90-day” tank or container) and is not a recycling unit under the provisions

of 40 CFR 261.6.” | \

c. 40 C.F.R. § 264.1050(d) provides that! “[e]ach piece of equipment to which this
subpart applies shall be marked in such a manner that it can be distinguished
readily from other pieces of equipment.” ? '

; | |

HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5 further incorporates by reference the “Definitions” section of 40

C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart BB, which provisions are set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 264.1051 and

provide, in pertinent part that: “{a]s used in this [40 C.F.R. Part 264] subpart [BB], all

terms shall have the meaning given them in [40 C.F.R.] § 264.1031.” 40 C;F.R. §

264.1031 includes definitions for the terms “equipment ” and “in light liquid service "

which previously have been recited in Paragrabh 35, above, and which are applicable to

such terms as used hereatfter. i

I I

At the time of the May 20, 2008 CEI, the purnp, the two valves and the pressure relief

device associated with the Tank, each of which was equipment then in light liquid

service, were not marked in any way to distinguish such pieces of equipment in light
liquid service readily from other pieces of equipment, as required pursuant to HAPTSDR

§ 45-25-1.5, which incorporates by reference the requirements of 40 CFR. §

264.1050(d). | | |

Respondent violated HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5, which incorporates by referenfce the
requirements of 40 C.F R. § 264.1050(d}, by failing to mark the pump, the two valves and
the pressure relief device associated with the Tank located at the Facility in such a

manner that each such piece of equipment in light liquid service could be distinguished
‘ ' i

16
| |




American Woodmark Corporation
EPA Facility 1.D. #WVD981738909

79.

80.

81.

readily from other pieces of equipment.
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COUNT V | |

Failure to Comply with HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5 |
Air Emission Standards (for Equipment Leaks)
: Monitoring Reqlqirements
Jor Pumps in Light Liquid Service

The allegations of paragraphs | through 78 of{ this CA are incorporated herem by

reference as though fully set forth at length.

HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5, incorporates by refer

ence the “Standards: Pumps in light liquid

service” requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart BB, which requirements are set

forth at 40 C.F.R. 5 264.1052 and provide, in

a.

HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5 also incorporates by ¢
of 40 C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart BB, which requ
264.1063 and, provide, in pertinent part, as fol

a.

40 C.F.R. §

pertinent part, as follows:

y 264.1052(a)(1) provides, with exceptions and exclusions (including

those of 40 C.F.R. §264.1050(e), (f) and (g) pertaining to equipment in vacuum
service, equipment that contains or contacts hazardous waste with an organic
concentration of 10 percent by weight [for less than 300 hours per calendar year

and pharmaceutical manufacturing fac

lities) not herein applicable, that “[e]ach

pump in tight liquid service shall be monitored monthl\« to detect leaks by the

methods specified in [40 C.F.R.] § 264

40 C.F.R. § 264.1052(a)(2) provides th

1063(b) . .

at “[e]ach pump in light liquid service shal!

be checked by visual inspection each calendar week for indications of liquids

dripping from the pump seal.”

40 C.F.R. § 264.1063(b)(1) provides th
in [40 C.F.R.] §§ 264.1052 - 264.1062

21 in 40 CFR Part 60.” 1

40 C.F.R. § 264.1063(d)(1) through (3

waste analysis plan required by [40 C.E.R

facility must determine, for each piece
contains or contacts a hazardous waste
exceeds 10 percent by weight using the
ASTM Methods D 2267-88. E 169-87

17

>ference the “Test methods and procedures™
irements are set forth at 40 C.F.R. §
lows:

at “[1]eak detection monitoring, as required
shall comply with . . . Reference Method

[1]n accordance with the

.] § 264.13(b), an owner or operator of a
of equipment, whether the equipment

with organic concentration that equals or
following: (1) Methods described in

E 168-88, E 260-85 ... :(2) Method

provides that =
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83.

84.

85.

86.

i
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i

9060A . .| SW-846 .. ., or (3) Application of the knowledge of the nature of the

hazardous waste stream or the proces
documentation of a waste determinatic

At all times relevant to the allegations in this
included one pump in light liquid service, pre
routinely contained and/or contacted hazardov
least 10 percent by weight and which was not

by which it was produced [with required]

n [made] by knowledge . . . |
i

CA. the Tank located at the Facility

viously identified above, which equipment

Is wastes with organic concentrations of at

subject to any exemption from the

requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart BB, as incorporated by reference in

HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5.

During the period from January 2005 through

July 2009, the pump in light Zi’iquid service

that is referenced in the preceding paragraph was not “montitored monthly to detect leaks™
pursuant to the methods specified in 40 C.F.R. § 264.1063 or “checked by visual

inspection each calendar week for indications
the Respondent pursuant to the methods speci
with the applicable requirements of 40 C.F.R.
by reference in HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5.

Respondent violated HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5,

of liquids dripping from the pump seal” by
tied in 40 C.F R, § 264.1063, in accordance
§ 264.1052(a)(1) and (2), as incorporated

which incorporates by reference the

methods specified in 40 C.F.R. § 264.1063, and to check by visual inspection weekly. the

rder to detect leaks.

requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264.1052(a}1) aid {(2). by failing to monitor monthly by the

pump in light liquid service at the Facility in

: i
COUNT VI S

Failure to Comply with HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5
Air Emission Standards (for Equipment Leaks)
| Monitoring Requirements

Sfor Pressure Relief Devices in Gas/Vapor Service

The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 84 of
reference as though fully set forth at length.
|

this CA are incorporated herein by

HAPTSDR § 45.25-1.5 incorporates by reference the “Standards: Pressure relief devices

in gas/vapor service” of 40 C.F R. Part 264, S

bpart BB. which requirements are set forth

at 40 C.F.R. § 264.1054 and provide, in pertinent part and with an exemption not herein

applicable, as follows:

l

a. 40 C.F.R. § 264.1054(b)2) provides that “[nlo later than 5 calendar days after a
pressure release, the pressure relief device shall be monitored to confirm the
condition of no detectable emissions, as indicated by an instrument reading of less

; |

| 18
|
|
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87.

88.

89.

90.

91.

than 500 ppm above background, as m
264.1063(c).”

Consent Agreement
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easured by the method specified in §

At all times relevant to the allegations in this CA, the Tank located at the Facility

included a pressure relief device in gas/vapor
piece of equipment routinely contained and/or
concentrations of at least 10 percent by weig

service, previously identified above, which
contacted hazardous wastes with organic

t and which was not subject to any

exemption from the requirements of 40 C.F.R| Part 264, Subpart BB, as incorporated by

reference in HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5.

During the period from January 2005 through July 2009. Respondent failed to monitor

the pressure relief device on the Tank, by the

ethod specified in 40 C.F.R. §

264.1063(c), within 5 calendar days after eacﬂ pressure release which occurred during
that time period in order to confirm the condition of no detectable emissions, as required
pursuant to HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5, which incorporates by reference the requirements of

40 C.F.R. § 264.1054(b)(2).

Respondent violated HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5, which incorporates by reference the

requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264.1054(b)(2), b

y failing to monitor the pressure relief

device on the Tank at the Facility, by the method specified in 40 C.F.R. § 265.1063(c).

within 5 calendar days after each pressure rele
January 2005 through July 2009.

COUNT VIl

ase which occurred during the period from

Failure to Comply with HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5

Air Emission Standards (for

Equipment Leaks)

Monitoring Requirements

Jor Valves in Light Li

The allegations of paragraphs | through 89 of
reference as though tully set forth at length.

HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5 incorporates by refere
service or in light liquid service” of 40 C.F.R.
are set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 264.1057 and prov

quid Service
this CA are incorporated herein by
nce the “Standards: Valves in gas/vapor

Part 264, Subpart BB, which requirements
de, in pertinent part, as follows:

a. 40 C.F.R. § 265.1057(a) provides, in relevant part, with exceptions not herein

applicable, that “[e]ach valve in .. . lig

ht liquid service shall be monitored

monthly to detect leaks by the methods specified in [40 C.I'.R.]

§ 265.1063(b). ...

19
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92.

93.

94.

95.

96.

At all times relevant to the allegations in this

I
I
s
|

|
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CA, the Tank located at the Flacility

included two valves in light liquid service, previously identified above, which equipment

routinely contained and/or contacted hazardod
least 10 percent by weight and which was not

s wastes with organic concentrations of at
subject to any exemption from the

requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart BB, as incorporated by reference in

HAPTSDR § 45- 25 1.5.

During the penod trom January 2005 through

service that are referenced in the preceding p

July 2009, the two valves in light liguid
ragraph were not “‘monitored monthly to

detect leaks™ by the Respondent pursuant to the methods specified in 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.1063, in accordance with the applicable requirements of 40 C. F R. §264.1057(a),

as incorporated by reference in HAPTSDR § 4

Respondent violated HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5,

45-25-1.5. |
1
which incorporates by reference the

requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264.1057(a), by tailing to monitor monthly by the methods
specified in 40 C.F.R. § 264.1063, the two valves in light liquid service at the Facility in

order to detect leaks.

COUNT VI -
TTSDR §45-25-1.5

Failure to Comply with HA

Air Emission Standards (for Equipment Leaks)

Recordkeeping Requirements ‘ ‘

L

The allegalions of paragraphs | through 94 of this CA are incorporated herem by

reference as though fully set forth at length.

HAPTSDR § 45- 25 1.5 incorporates by reference the “Recordkeeping requlrements” of
40 C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart BB, which requlréments are set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 264.1064

and providge, in pertinent part, as [ollows:

a. 40 C.FR. § 265.1064(b)(1) provides that owners and operators must record in the
facility operating record, for each piece|of equipment to which 40 C.F.R. Part 264,
Subpart BB applies, the following information: *(1) Equipment identification
number and hazardous wastc management unit identification. (ii) Approximate
locations within the facility (e.g., identify the hazardous waste management unit
on a facility plot plan). (ii1) Type of equipment (¢.g., a pump or pipeling valve).
(iv) Percent-by-weight total organics injthe hazardous waste stream at the
equipment. (v) Hazardous waste state dt the equipment (e.g., gas/vapor or liquid).

{vi) Method of compliance with the st

repair’’ or

20

sdacd (08,
equipped with dual mechanical seals’’).”

‘monthly leak detection and




American Woodmark Corporation Consent Agreement
EPA Facility ID. #WVD981738909 Dacket No. RCRA-03-2010-0069

97.

98.

99.

i o

b. 40 C.F.R. § 265.1064(g) provides that|the following information pertaining to all
equipment subject to the requirements in 40 C.F.R. §§ 265.1052 through
265.1060 shall be recorded in a log th{t is kept in the facility operating record:

“(1) A list of 1dentification numbers for equipment (except welded fittings)
subject to the requirements of this subpart. (2)(1) A list of identification numbers
for equipment that the owner or operator elects to designate for no detectable
emissions, as indicated by an instrument reading of less than 500 ppm above
background, under the provisions of §§ 264.1052(e), 264.1053(1), and
264.1057(f). (ii) The designation of tHis equipment as subject to the requirements
of §§ 264.1052(e), 264.1053(1), or 264.1057(f) shall be signed by the owner or
operator. (3) A list of equipment identification numbers for pressure relief
devices required to comply with § 26411054(a). (4)(1) The dates of each
compliance test required in §§ 264.1032(e), 264.1053(1), 264.1054, and
264.1057(f). (it) The background leveir measured during each compliance test.
(iii) The maximum instrument reading/ measured at the equipment during each
compliance test. (5) A list of identification numbers for equipment in vacuum
service. (6) Identification, either by list or location (area or group) of equipment
that contains or contacts hazardous waste with an organic concentration of at [east
10 percent by weight for less than 300 hours per calendar year.” |
At the time of the May 20. 2008 CEl, the Facility’s operating record did not contain or
include a log with any of the information identified in the preceding paragraph, for the
pump, two valves and pressure relief device associated with the Tank at the Facility, as
required pursuant to HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5, which incorporates by reference the
requirements of 40 C.F.R. §264.1064(b)(1) and (g). ! i

Respondent violated HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5, which incorporates by reference the
requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264.1064(b)(1) and (g), by failing to record in the Facility
operating record, or in any log maintained thergin, the information identified in paragraph
96, above, for the pump and two valves in light liquid service and for the pressure relief
device in gas/vapor service associated with the Tank at the Facility. |

COUNT IX i 5

Fadure to Comply with HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5 ';
Air Emission Standard ! ‘
Recordkeepmg Requirements for Tanks 5 !

The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 98 of this CA are incorporated herein by
reference as though fully set forth at length. ‘ !




American Woodmark Corporation
EPA Facility I.D. #WVD981738909

100.

HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5 incorporates by refer
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nce the requirements ot 40 C.F.R. Part 264,

Subpart CC [entitled “Air Emission Standards for Tanks, Surface Impoundments, and

Containers”], which requirements provide, in

a.

40 C.F.R. § 264.1080(a) provides. wit
requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 264. §

pertinent part, as follows:
h exceptions not herein applicable, that the
ubpart CC, “apply to owners and operators

of all facilities that treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste in tanks, surface

1mpoundments or containers subject to either subpart I, J, or K of thlS [40 C.FR.]

part [264]

40 C.F.R. § 264.1082(b) provides, in relevant part and with exceptions not herein
applicable, that “[t]he owner or operator shall control air pollution emissions from
each hazardous waste management unjt in accordance with the standards specified

in [40 C.F.R.| §§ 264.1084 through 264.1087 . .
of the hazardous waste management unit. !

. as applicable to the management

kb

40 C.¥.R. § 264.1084(b)( 1) provides, in relevant part, that for a tan}\ whlch meets
all of the conditions specified in 40 C. F R. § 264.1084(b)(1)(1) through (iii), “the
owner or operator shall control air poliutlon emissions from the tank in
accordance with the Tank Level | controls specified in [40 C.F.R. § 264.1084(c)].

40 C.F.R. § 264.1084(c) provides that [*

[o]wners and operators controlling air

pollutant emissions from a tank using [Tank Level 1 controls shall meet the

requirements specified in paragraphs (¢

)(1) through (c)(4) of [40 C.F.R. §

264.1084].” 40 C.F.R. § 264.1084(c)(:}) thereafter provides, in relevant part, that:

“[t}he owner or operator shall inspect {

¢ air emission control equipment in

accordance with the following requirements. (I) The fixed roof and 1ts closure

devices shall be visuaily inspected by qhe owner or operator to check for defects

that could result in air pollutant emissions. . .
perform an initial inspection of the fixe

the date that the tank becomes subject 1

operator shall perform the inspections at least once every year...

that a defect is detected, the owner or g
owner or operator shall maintain a recg
requirements specified in § 264.1089(b

40 C.F.R, § 264.1089(b) provides, in r¢

of a tank using air emission controls in
§ 264.1084 of this [Part 264] subpart [(

the tank™ , which information includes]

| 22

. (1i) The owner or operator shall

d roof and its closure devices on or before
o this section. Thereafter, the owner or
(1i1) In the event
perator shall repair the defect . . . (iv) The
rd of the inspection in accordance with the
) of this subpart.” ‘

levant part, that: “[t|he owner or operator
accordance with the requirements of

"C] shall prepare and maintain records for
but is not limited to: “(ii) A record for
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101.

103.

104.

105.

106.

107.

each inspection required by {40 C.F.R}] § 264.1084 of this subpart M

Atall times herein relevant, the Tank at the Facility was equipped with a fixed roof and at
least three closure devices, met all of the conjitions specified in 40 C.F.R. §
264.1084(b)(1)(I) through (i1}, was using Tank Level | controls, and was subject to, and
not otherwise excepted from, Tank Level | aillr emission control requirements pursuant to
HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5, which incorporates bP' reference the requirements of 40 C.F.R.
Part 264, Subpart CC, including the requireme‘nts set forth at 40 C.F.R. §§ 264.1083(b),
264.1084(b)(1) and (c)(4), and the associated recordkeeping requirements of 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.1089(b), as identitied and set forth in th|L: preceding paragraph. |
The Respondent did not prepare, such that at t}w time of the May 20, 2008 CEI it did not
maintain, records of the initial and annual Tank fixed roof and closure device emission
control visual inspections required pursuant tg HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5, which
incorporates by reference the requirements of 40 C.F.R. §§ 264.1084(c)(4) and
264.1089(b)( 1 )(ii). : |

Respondent violated HAPTSDR § 45-25-1.5, which incorporates by reference the

recordkeeping requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264.1089(b)(1)(i1), by failing to maintain
records of the initial and annual fixed roof and closure device emission control visual
inspections performed on the Tank at the Facility.

COUNT X
Failure to Comply with WVHWMR

) i
Universal Waste Lamp Management Requiremenis '

; . |

The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 103 of this CA are incorporated herein by
reference as though fully set forth at length. 1 : |
WVHWMR § 33-20-13.1 incorporates by reference the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part
273 (2000 edition), including the “Standards for Small Quantity Handlers of Universal
Waste”, which requirements are set forth in 40|/C.F.R. Part 273, Subpart B, and include
the requirements set forth at 40 C.F.R. §§ 273.13{(d)(1), 273.14(e) and 273.1;5(a) (2000
edition). : l‘

Respondent is, and at all times herein relevant has been, a smali quantity handler of
universal waste lamps which 1s subject to the requirements 40 C.F.R. Part 273, Subpart B
(2000 edition). | ‘ ’

40C.F.R.§ 273.13(d)(1)(2000 edition) provides that ~{a] small quantity handler of
unmiversal waste must contain any lamp in containers or packages that are structurally
|

23




American Woodmark (i orporﬁtian
EPA Facility 1.D. #WVvD981738909

108.

109.

110.

111.

112.

113.

114,

sound, adequate to prevent breakage, and corn
Such containers and packages must remain cl
spillage or damage that could cause leakage Ul

At the time of the May 20, 2008 CEl, an open

Consent Agreement
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ipatible with the contents of the lamps.
osed and must lack evidence of leakage,
nder reasonably toreseeabie conditions.”

and unlabeled cardboard box of universal

waste lamps was being accumulated in the Maintenance Shop at the Facility.

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-13.]1, which incorporates by reference the

requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 273.13(d)(1)(20

edition), by failing to contain universal

waste lamps being accumulated in the Maintenance Shop at the Facility in closed
containers or packages capable of preventing breakage.

COUNT X

1

Failure to Comply with WVHWMR
Universal Waste Lamp Labeling/Marking Requirements

The aliegations of paragraphs 1 through 109 of this CA are incorporated herein by

reference as though fully set forth at length.

40 C.F.R. § 273.14(e) (2000 edition), pertaining to universal waste lamp labeling/marking

requirement, provides that: “[e]ach lamp or a ¢
are contained must be labeled or marked clear

ontainer or package in which such lamps
y with one of the following phrases:

“Universal Waste—Lamp(s),” or “Waste Lamp(s).” or “Used Lamp(s).”

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-13.1

, which incorporates by reference the

requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 273.14(e) (2000 ¢

dition). by failing to label or mark the

container of universal waste lamps identified in paragraph 108, above, with the phrase
“Universal Waste—Lamp(s),” “Waste Lamp(g)” or “Used Lamp(s).”

COUNT XII
Failure to Comply with WVHWMR
Universal Waste Lamp Accumu{ation Requirements

The allegations of paragraphs | through 112 o
reference as though fully set forth at length.

40 C.F.R. § 273.15¢a) (2000 edition} provides,

“this CA are incorporated herein by

in relevant part and with an exception not

herein applicable, that: “[a] small quantity handler of universal waste may accumulate

universal waste for no longer than one year fro
or received from another handler. . .”

24
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115.

116.

117.

118.

At the time of the May 20, 2008 CEI, the R

Consent Agreement
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spondent was accumulating at the Facility

universal waste lamps that it had generated more than three years earlier.

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-172
requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 273.15(a) (200
lamps at the Facility for a period Jonger than
waste was generated.

.1, which incorporates by reference the
edition), by accumulating umversal waste
one year from the date that such universal

IV, CIVIL PENALTIES

Respondent agrees to pay a civil penalty in the amount of Twenty Five Thousand Five

Hundred and Ninety Dollars (525,590.00),
claims for penalties which Complainant may
set forth in Section 11l (“EPA Findings of Fa
Such civil penalty shall become due and payz
of a true and correct copy of the CAFQO. In o
administrative costs and late payment penalti

in settlement and satisfaction of all civil
have concerning the violations alleged and
et and Conclusions of Law™) of this CA.
1ble immediately upon Respondent’s receipt
rder to avoid the assessment of interest,

es in connection with such civil penalty,

Respondent must pay such civil penalty no Iater than thirty (30) calendar days after the
date on which this CAFO is mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent.

The civil penalty settlement amount set forth

in the paragraph immediately above was

determined after consideration of the statutory factors set forth in Section 3008(a) of

faith efforts to comply with the applicable requirements. These factors were applied to

RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), which include tjie seriousness of the violation and any good

the particular facts and circumstances of this

ase with specific reference to EPA’s

October, 1990 RCRA Civil Penalty Policy, ag' revised in June, 2003 (*RCRA Penalty
Policy™), which retlect the statutory penalty criteria and factors set forth at Section
3008(a)3) and (g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6928(a)(3) and (g). the appropriate Adjustment
of Civil Monetary Penalties for Inflation, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part |9 and the

September 21, 2004 memorandum by Acting
Skinner, entitled Modifications to EPA Penal
Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule (* Skinner
19, and as provided in the Skinner Memorand

EPA Assistant Administrator Thomas V.

y Policies to Implement the Civil Monetary
Memorandum”). Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part
um, penalties for RCRA violations

occurring after January 30, 1997 and prior to March 15, 2004 are subject to a 10%

in¢rease (not to exceed a $27,500.00 per viol
penalty guideline amounts set forth 1n the RC

ation statutory maximum penalty) above the
RA Penalty Policy to account for inflation.

Penalties for RCRA violations occurring aftery March 15, 2004 and before January 13.
2009 are subject to an additional 17.23% increase (not to exceed a $32,500.00 per
violation statutory maximum penalty) above the penalty guideline amounts set torth in the
RCRA Penalty Policy to account for subsequent inflation. The violations herein alleged
occurred after March 15, 2004 and before Jangary 13, 2009 and the civil penalty

25




American Woodmark Corporation
EPA Facility 1L.D. #WVD981738909

119.

c.

settlement amount set forth in the paragraph 1

in consideration of the applicable penalty inf]

Part 19 and as provided in the Skinner Memo
|

Payment of the civil penalty as required by pa

cashier’s check, certified check, or electronic
i
|
|

Consent A greement
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mmediately above was further determined
ation adjustments, pursuant to 40 C.F.R.
randum. .

| :

ragraph 117, above, shall be made by either
wire transfer, in the following manner:

a. All paymehts by Respondent shall reference Respondent’s nafne and address, and
the Docket Number of this action (Docket No. RCRA-03-2010-0069).

b. All checks shall be made payable to “United States Treasury™; |

C. All paymelnts made by check and sent
mailed to:

1J.8. Environmental Protection

- Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

by regular mail shall be addressed and

Agency |

Contact: Eric Volck 513-487-2105

d. All payments made by check and sent

addressed and mailed to:

.S, Bank

Government Lockbox 979077
U.S. EPA, Fines & Penalties
1005 Convention Plaza

Matl Station SL-MO-C2-GL
St. Louis, MO 63101

Contact: 314-418-1028

Cinéinnati Finance
U.S. EPA.MS-NWD

26

y overnight delivery service shall be

All payments made by check in any currency drawn on banks with no USA
branches shall be addressed for delivery to: . }

1
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f.

All payments made by electronic wire'

All electronic payments made through
known as Remittance Express (REX). shall be directed to:

On-Line Payment Option:

26 W. M.L. King Drive
Cincinnati, OH 45268-0001

Federal Reserve Bank of New [York

ABA = 021030004
Account = 68010727
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33
33 Liberty Street
New York, NY 10045

US Treasury REX / Cashlink ACH Receiver

ABA = 051036706

Consent Agreement
Docket No. RCRA-03-2010-0069

transfer shall be directed to:

Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read “D 68010727 Environmental
Protection Agency”™

the automated c¢learinghouse (ACH), also

Account No.: 310006, Environmental Protection Agency

CTX Format Transaction Code|22 - Checking

Physical location of U.S. Treasury facility:

5700 Rivertech Court
Riverdale, MD 20737 |

Contact: Jesse White 301-887- q548 or REX, 1-866-234- 5681

WWW PAY.GOV/PAYGOV

Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field. Open and complete the form.

I Additional payment guidance is available at:

http://www.epa.gov/ocfo/finsenvices/make a_payment.htm .
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120. At the time of pay:ment. Respondent simultangously shall send a notice of éuch payment,

121,

122.

123.

including a copy of the check or electronic fund transfer. as applicable. to: -

i
|

Ms. Lydia Guy
Regional Hearing Clerk (3RC8‘0)
U.S. EPA, Region 11l

1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029;

and

AJ. D’Angelo |
Sr. Assistant Regional Counsel (3RC30) i |
U.S. EPA, Region 11l :
1650 Arch Street . '
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029. |

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C, § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. §113.11, EPA is entitled to assess interest,
administrative costs and late payment pena[tieg on outstanding debts owed to the United
States and a charge to cover the costs of proceésing and handling a delinquent claim. as
more fully described below. Accordingly, Re |p0ndent’s failure to make timely payment
or to comply with the conditions in this CAFQ shall result in the assessment of late
payment charges including interest, penalties, and/or administrative costs of handling
delinquent debts, ‘

Interest on the civil penalty assessed in this Cj‘FO will begin to accrue on the date that a
true and correct copy of this CAFQ is mailed r hand-delivered to Respondent. However,
EPA will not seek to recover interest on any amount of the civil penalty that is paid
within thirty (30) calendar days after the date Lln which such interest begins to accrue.
Interest will be assessed at the rate of the Unit;d States Treasury tax and loan rate in
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(a). : 1
The costs of the Agency’s administrative handling of overdue debts will be charged and
assessed monthly throughout the period a debtis overdue. 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(b).
Pursuant to Appendix 2 of EPA’s Resources Management Directives - Cash
Management, Chapter 9, EPA will assess a $13.00 administrative handling charge for
administrative costs on unpaid penalties for the first thirty (30) day period after the
payment is due and an additional $15.00 tor each subsequent thirty (30) days the penalty
remains unpaid. : 3-
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124.

125.

126.

127.

128.

129.

A late payment penalty of six percent (6%) per year will be assessed monthly on any
portion of the civil penalty that remains delingquent more than ninety (90) calendar days.
40 C.F.R. § 13.11(c). The late payment penalty on any portion of the civil penalty that
remains delinquent more than ninety days shall accrue from the first day payment is
delinquent. 31 C.F.R. § 901.9(d).

The Respondent agrees not to deduct for federal tax purposes the civil monetary penalty
specified in this CAFO. '

V. CERTIFICATIONS

Respondent certifies to Complainant by its signature hereto, to the best of Respondent’s
knowledge and belief, that Respondent and th? Facility currently are in compliance with
all relevant provisions of the authorized WVHWMR and HAPTSDR, and of RCRA
Subtitle C, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-693%¢, for which violations are alleged in this CA.

VI. OTHER APPLICL BLE LAWS

Nothing in this CAFO shall relieve Respondent of any duties otherwise imposed upon it
by applicable federal, state, or local law and/or regulation,

VIl. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

This CAFO resolves only EPA’s claims for ci|vil penalties for the specific violations
which are alleged in this CA. Nothing in this CAFO shall be construed as limiting the
authority of EPA to undertake action against any person, including the Respondent, in
response to any condition which EPA determilt\pes may present an imminent and
substantial endangerment to the public health, public welfare or the environment. In
addition, this settlement is subject to all limitat:ions on the scope of resolution and to the
reservation of rights set forth in Section 22.18(c) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice.
Further, EPA reserves any rights and remedies|available to it under RCRA, the
regulations promulgated thereunder. and any other federal laws or regulations for which
EPA has jurisdiction, to enforce the provisions of this CAFO following its filing with the
Regional Hearing Clerk. I

|
VIII. FULL AND FINAL SATISFACTION

This settlement shall constitute full and final satisfaction of ail civil claims for penalties
which Complainant has under RCRA Section 3008(a) and (g), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and
(g), for the violations alleged in this CA.
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130.

131
132.

For Respondent American Woodmark Corporation:

Date: 25 J;n

Consent Agreement
Docker No. RCRA-03-2010-0069

IX. PARTIES BOUND

This CA and the accompanying FO shall apply to and be binding upon the EPA, the
Respondent, Respondent’s officers and directors (in their official capacity) and
Respondent’s successors and assigns. By his|or her signature below, the person signing
this CA on behalf of Respondent acknowledges that he or she is fully authorized to enter
into this CA and to bind the Respondent to the terms and conditions of this CA and the

accompanying FO.

X. EFFECTIVE

The effective date of this CAFO is the date on
Hearing Clerk after signature by the Regional
Judicial Officer.

XI. ENTIRE AGR

This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement ar

DATE

which the FO is filed with the Regional
Administrator or his designee, the Regional

EEMEN

1d understanding of the parties concerning

settlement of the above-captioned action and there are no representations, warranties,

covenants, terms or conditions agreed upon be
expressed in this CAFO.

30

tween the parties other than those

tee? /‘7 2070 Bi:
: Robert I.
: V.P. Engineering
American Woodmark Corporation
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For the Complainant: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region [l

Date: é@é’{ 20 ‘/il_#

Sr. Assiftant Regional Counsel

After reviewing the EPA Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and other pértinent
matters, the Land and Chemicals Division of the Uniﬁled States Environmental Protection

Agency, Region [II, recommends that the Regional Administrator, or his designee, the Regional
Judicial Officer, issue the attached FO. :

Date: //25’ /0 By:

- Abrahaifi Ferdas, Direefor
% Land anJrl Chemicals Diviston




UNITED STJATES
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

|11
treet

Docket No. RCRA-03-2010-0069

Proceeding Under Section
3008(a) and (g) of the
;Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, as amended,
42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and (g)

REGION
1650 Arch “
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

In Re: )
)
American Woodmark Corporation )
3102 Shawnee Drive )
Winchester, VA 22601-4208, )
)
RESPONDENT. )
)
American Woodmark Corporation )
390 Industrial Park Blvd. )
Moorefield, WV 26836 )
EPA Facility 1.D. # WVD981738909, )
)
FACILITY. )

FINAL OR

Complainant, the Director of the Land and C}

Protection Agency, Region 111, and Respondent, Amg

executed a document entitled “Consent Agreement.”

DER

wemicals Division, U.S. Environmental
rrican Woodmark Corporation, have

which [ hereby ratity as a Consent

Agreement in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative

Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Te

rmination or Suspension of Permits

(“Consolidated Rules of Practice’™), 40 C.F.R. Part 22, with specific reference to Se.ctions

22.13(b) and 22.18(b}2) and (3). The terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement are accepted

by the undersigned and incorporated into this Final Order as if fully set forth at length herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to Section 3008(a) and (g) of the Solid Waste Disposal

Act, commonly known as Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended, inter

alia, by the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments|of 1984 (collectively referred to hereinafter




American Woodmark Corporation 3 " Final Order
EPA Facility 1.D. #WVD98I738909 Docket No. RC{{A-03-20]0-0069
as “RCRA™), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and (g). and the Consolidated Rules ofPracticei after having
determined, based on the‘representations of the Parti¢s set forth in the Consent Agi’eement, that
the civil penalty of Twenty Five Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety Dollars ($25,.590.00) agreed
to therein was based upon a consideration of the factors set forth in RCRA Section 3008(a), 42
U.S.C. § 6928(a), [TIS HEREBY ORDERED that Regspondent pay a civil moneta?ry penalty of
Twenty Five Thousand F'}ve Hundred and Ninety Dollars ($25,590.00), in accordapce with the
provisions of the foregoing Consent Agreement, and Tomply timely with each of tﬁe additional
terms and conditions theréof.

The effective date of the foregoing Consent A%reement and this Final Order is the date on

which this Final Order is filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

(A0/0
te

Regional Judicial Officer
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 111




UNITED ST
ENVIRONMENTAL PRO

ATES
TECTION AGENCY

REGION|III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

In Re: )
)
American Woodmark Corporation ) Docket No. RCRA-03-2010-0069
3102 Shawnee Drive )
Winchester, VA 22601-4208, )
)
RESPONDENT. ) Proceeding Under Section
) r‘5008(a) and (g) of the
American Woodmark Corporation ) Resource Conservation and
390 Industrial Park Blvd. ) Recovery Act, as amended,
Moorefield, WV 26836 ) 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and (g)
EPA Facility LD. # WVD981738909, )
)
FACILITY. )
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that on the date set forth below, I caused to be hand-delivered to Ms.
Lydia Guy, Regional Hearing Clerk (3RC00), U.S. EPA Region I[l. 1650 Arch Street, 5" Floor,

Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029, the original and one ¢

0py of the foregoing Consent Agreement

and of the accompanying Final Order. | further certify that on the date set forth below, I caused

true and correct copies of the same to be mailed via Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested.

Postage Prepaid, to the following persons at the follo’wmb addresses:

$4r. Mark Seals

Plant Manager

Mr. Robert J. Adams
V.P. Engineering

American Woodmark Corporation

P.O. Box 1980

Winchester, Virginia 22604-4280
(Articie No.7004 2890 0000 5075 7019}

é’ Z%ZQ o/
Date

"

) T e

merican Woodmark Corporation

90 Industrial Park Blvd.

oorefield, WV 26836

ticle No. 7004 2890 0000 5075 7026}

elo (3RC30)

g
Sr. AssTé:nt Regional Counsel

J.S. EPA, Region I

1650 Arch Street
*hiladelphia, PA 19103-2029
el. (215) 814-2480




